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Judge Kelly:
Good morning. It’s Monday, May the 28th, 2019, 9:00 in the morning and Kerr County Commissioners’ Court is now in session. 

The first thing I want to do is remind everybody to turn off your phones. We’re implementing a policy that if it goes off and we can hear it, even if it’s a loud buzz, then the Sheriff is gonna take it up and give it back to you after the meeting. 

We think that’s very merciful compared to what they do upstairs because they take $100.00 from you to get your phone back. That’s just to remind everybody to turn those phones off or turn them where we can’t hear them. 

Okay. The first item that we deal with this morning is the visitor input. If the item is – oh, I forgot. We’ve got to pray first. 

Commissioner Letz:
Please join me in prayer, please. Our heavenly father, on this day after Memorial Day, let us always remember to remember those who have given their lives so that we can have the freedoms we enjoy in this country. I ask you to look over all the first responders around the world. I’d like to thank you for the recent rains we’ve had and hope they continue through the summer. I’d like to ask these things in Christ’s names, amen. 
Multiple Speakers:
I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America and to the republic for which it stands, one nation, under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.

Judge Kelly:
Now, we’ll take visitor input. The reminder is if it’s an agenda item, what you want to talk about is on the agenda, please wait and save your comments for when that agenda item is called. But if there is something that you’d like to address the Commissioners’ Court about that is not on the agenda, this is your opportunity to come forward and address this. Is there anyone that would like to speak? 

Okay. Then we’ll go to the Commissioners’ comments, give any Commissioner a chance to talk about what’s going on in their precinct.  Precinct one? 

Commissioner Belew:
Lots of rain, lots of potholes. I’ve been out running around looking at potholes and taking care of things. I want to thank the folks at Adult Probation. They did some more mowing this last weekend. We had a great turnout for our Memorial Day service here at the courthouse. That was good. That’s all I’ve got. 
Commissioner Moser:
I wanted to mention the Memorial Day service at the Veterans Cemetery – really big turnout there, well-attended, perfect weather, and appropriate. So, good message there. 

Then throughout, I think three different places, the arts and crafts this weekend was really big – Y.O. Rach Hotel down at the plaza around the – on Earl Garrett and City Hall – and then quilting out at Ag Barn. So, lots and lots of folks, lots of crafts. It worked out well. That’s it. 

Judge Kelly:
Anything? 

Commissioner Letz:
Just one thing is hats off to the Tivy baseball team. They lost in the fourth round of the playoffs, very close game. They lost in the eighth inning, which is extra innings in high school. But they had a very good season, a very young team, and I expect they’ll be a very strong team for the years to come. 

Commissioner Harris:
I just want to say things look great out west. Everything is green and lush and looking good. Also, I want to echo what Harley said about the memorial service yesterday here at the courthouse. It was great, well-attended. That’s it. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. 

Commissioner Belew:
We might add that a lot of the credit for that goes to Marty and to our advisory committee because they did a lot of background work. So, credit where credit is due. 

Judge Kelly:
Absolutely. And just for the record, we had the entire Commissioners’ Court there. So, it was a really good turnout. 

Commissioner Letz:
And quite a few of City Council – I know three from City Council and there could have been the other two. I’m not sure. I know there were three of them. 
Judge Kelly:
I saw three. Anyway, it was a good turnout. The first item on the agenda we’re gonna take out of order. I want to ask Charlie to be patient with us. It’s gonna call item 1.7, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action to approve a resolution recognizing Ed Livermore’s service as a member of the Kerrville/Kerr County Joint Airport Board. 

Commissioner Moser:
Thank you, Judge. If I may, I will read that resolution. The resolution of Kerr County Commissioners’ Court to thank Edward Livermore for service at Kerrville/Kerr County Airport Board and for being a major contributor to the success of other institutions, whereas – there are a bunch of whereas.’ I’m gonna say whereas one time, okay? 


Whereas Ed was instrumental in the success of several community newspapers in Oklahoma and Texas, serving as a publisher for over 30 years and was President of the Oklahoma Press Association in 1993. Ed was named distinguished alumni, Oklahoma University – I guess you can forgive him for that – School of Journalism in 1992 and for Oklahoma Journalism Hall of Fame in 2004.


Ed served as President of the Board of Regents for the Oklahoma Colleges in ’78. Ed demonstrated his advocacy for water resources by spearheading the effort to build reservoirs in Central Oklahoma. Ed was named as Edmond, Oklahoma Citizen of the Year in 1980. He served honorably in the US Army as First Lieutenant, chose to share his energy and leadership beginning in 1999 by moving to Kerrville and helping to make that the best in the world to live. 


Ed was recognized by the FAA recently for 50 years of safe flying piloting aircraft and as such received the Wright Brothers Master Pilot Award. Ed served eight years on the Kerr County Airport Board, including two years as President. 


During his tenure on the Airport Board, the airport has become revenue-neutral, that is taxpayers of Kerr County do not contribute to the operating funds of the airport. Therefore, be it resolved this day, the 28th of May 2019, Kerry County Commissioners’ Court does hereby thank Ed Livermore for his service to Kerr County Airport Board and to this and other communities. So, Ed, congratulations. 

Ed Livermore: 
Thank you very much. 

Commissioner Moser:
Let us sign this real quickly and we’ll give it to you. 

Ed Livermore:
Well, thank you. 

Commissioner Moser:
Because I know you have to go get in your airplane and get up 50 years and one day of flying safely. Tell us about what that means, Ed. 

Ed Livermore:
Well, basically, if you live long enough and you don’t break the law. But it’s 50 years of accident-free, violation-free flying. As someone pointed out, they just didn’t catch you. I’d like to make a comment, if I could. I think that the airport is one of several examples in our community where the City and County have worked so well together. 
Tom and Jonathan have been – to how many meetings? Lots. And they’ve led the County’s effort at the airport. City Council members have done the same thing. It’s just a real good example of when we all cooperate, everyone does better. I think you’ve given me credit and the board credit for that revenue-neutral, but believe me, the County and City were back there helping as well. We really do appreciate that. 
Commissioner Letz:
Thank you, Ed. 

Commissioner Moser:
We thank you. Let us get the citation.

Judge Kelly:
Well, Jody’s making the copies. 

Commissioner Moser:
Okay. 

Judge Kelly:
Before we do – you’ve made a motion. Is there a second?

Commissioner Moser:
Oh, yes. I made a motion. 

Commissioner Letz:
Second. 

Commissioner Moser:
I make a motion – thank you for that reminder. 

Judge Kelly:
There’s been a motion made by Commissioner Moser and seconded by Commissioner Letz to approve the resolution. All in favor, raise your hands. Unanimous. Congratulations, Ed. 

Ed Livermore:
Thank you. 

Commissioner Letz:
You got it. 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. Come on, Jon. Photo op. 

Commissioner Letz:
Photo op, yeah. 

[Crosstalk]

Ed Livermore:
Thank you very much. Appreciate it. 

[Crosstalk]

Judge Kelly:
Okay. Back to the agenda – item 1.1, public hearing for a revision of plat for Kerrville South 2, lot 57, volume 4, page 64, Precinct 1. Charlie? 

Charlie Hastings:
It’s just a public hearing. 

Judge Kelly:
Anybody want to speak on that? This is your opportunity to talk about it. Okay. Then we’ll adjourn that public hearing. 1.2, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action for the court to approve a revision of plat for Kerrville South 2, lot 57. Here we go. 

Charlie Hastings:
Thank you. This proposes a revision of plat to divide lot 57 into two lots, 57A and 57B, 1.82 acres that backs up on Marshall Drive and 2.17 acres that backs up on [inaudible] [00:10:30] Drive. They will be served by a public water system. They’ll have their own septic system. They’re out of the floodplain, which [inaudible] [00:10:34]. 

We have already had the public hearing. We just had it. So, the County Engineer requests the court approve the revision of plat for Kerrville South, lot 57, volume 4, page 64, Precinct 1. 
Commissioner Belew:
I move for approval. 
Commissioner Moser:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
A motion has been made by Commissioner Belew, seconded by Commissioner Moser to approve the revision of plat for Kerrville South 2. Is there any discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. 


Item 1.3, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action for the court to approve a final plat for De Leon Estates, Section 2, Precinct 1. Charlie? 

Charlie Hastings:
This subdivision proposes two residential lots with access off of Madrona Drive, Lot 1. It’s going to be 3.02 acres and will be served by a public water system. It will front on Madrona. And Lot 2, 6.98 acres, larger than 5 acres, will be served by a public water system or a private well – they’re deciding what they want to do – and they’ll front on Madrona Drive and State Highway 16. 
The County Engineer requests that the court consider, discuss, take appropriate action to approve this final plat for De Leon Estates, Precinct 1. 

Commissioner Belew:
I move for approval. 

Commissioner Moser:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
It’s been moved by Commissioner Belew and seconded by Commissioner Moser to approve the final plat. Is there any discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand? Unanimous, 5-0. 


Item 1.4, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action to rescind Court Order No. 37421 and adopt a new court order exempting new subdivisions which create two or more lots of 5 acres or less intended for residential purposes from Section 1.03 of the Kerr County Subdivision Rules and Regulations as those rules do not apply. 

Charlie Hastings:
Thank you. On April 8th, 2019, Kerr County Commissioners’ Court adopted Court Order No. 37421 approving to exempt new subdivisions with tracts of land that are less than five acres in size in Section 1.03 of the Kerr County Subdivision Rules, as those rules do not apply. 
Attached are copies of the Kerr County Subdivision Regulations, which adopted portions of the model subdivision regulations and the above cited rule applies actually to subdivisions which create two or more lots of five acres or less, not just less than five acres – that are intended for residential purposes. 

So, we talked about this. I talked about this with Commissioner Letz. We said it’s got to follow the model subdivision rules exactly. So, we’re asking them to rescind that court order and replace it. 

The County Engineer requests that the court rescind Court Order No. 37421 and adopt a new court order that reads approve to exempt new subdivisions which create two or more lots of 5 acres or less intended for residential purposes from Section 1.03 of the Kerr County Subdivision Rules and Regulations, as those rules do not apply. 
Commissioner Belew:
Okay. I have a question. Why do we need to cut this out and do it now when we haven’t finalized our subdivision rules? This is not gonna ever apply? 

Commissioner Letz:
I can answer. 

Commissioner Belew:
Okay. 

Commissioner Letz: 
There was a ruling, I guess is how you’d call it, from the Texas Water Development Board about how we enforce model subdivision rules. This is a direct impact of that, that those exemptions do not apply. So, regardless of any rule rewrites we do, this is the current rule. 

We’re just making our court orders in compliance with the ruling we got from the Water Development Board on model subdivision rules. Our previous court order, when we tried to do this, we didn’t line up 100% correctly or closely. We’re not changing anything, really. We need to get our language exactly correct. 
Commissioner Belew:
Did it fall short or did we go too far? Do you remember? 

Commissioner Letz:
The model rules are two or more –

Charlie Hastings:
Five acres or less. We just said less than five acres. 

Commissioner Letz:
Five acres or less. It’s a real minor thing. I make a motion – let me do this in two court orders – I make a motion that we rescind Court Order 37421. 

Commissioner Moser:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
Commissioner Letz has moved and Commissioner Moser has seconded that we go ahead and adopt this change to the Kerr County Subdivision Rules and Regulations. Any further discussion? That’s a rescinding order. 

Commissioner Moser:
Rescind that order. 

Judge Kelly:
So, it takes it out. 

Commissioner Letz:
Right. 

Judge Kelly:
Any further discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. 

Commissioner Letz:
Then on that same agenda item – Charlie, can you read the language as it should be? 

Charlie Hastings:
Yes, sir. 

Commissioner Letz:
I’ll make a motion for this language. 

Charlie Hastings:
This would be adopting the new court order that reads approve to exempt new subdivisions which create two or more lots of 5 acres or less intended for residential purposes from Section 1.03, Kerr County Subdivision Rules and Regulations, as those rules do not apply. 

Commissioner Letz:
That’s my motion. 

Commissioner Harris:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
Commissioner Letz has moved and Commissioner Harris has seconded to adopt the language and substitute it into the code. Is there any further discussion about that? Those in favor, raise your hand? Unanimous, 5-0. 


Item 1.5, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action for the court to set a public hearing for 9:00 a.m. on July 8th, 2019 for a revision of plat for Hidden Hills 2, Lots 28 and 29R. Charlie Hastings?

Charlie Hastings:
This proposed revision of plat changes the lot line between Lot 28, currently 73.5 acres, and Lot 29R, currently 67.33 acres, creating lot 28R at 62.83 acres, and Lot 29R1, 78 [inaudible] [00:16:44]. Access to both lots will be on Hidden Hills Ranch Road. You will recall the court just adopted a revision of plat that did affect one of these lots recently. That affected his north lot line. He’s wanting to adjust his south lot line now on that Lot 29. 

The County Engineer requests that the court set a public hearing for 9:00 a.m. on July 8th, 2019 for revision of plat for Hidden Hills 2, lots 28 and 29R, Volume 7, page 177, Precinct 2. 
Commissioner Moser:
Move for approval. 
Commissioner Belew:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
Mr. Moser has made a motion. It’s been seconded by Commissioner Belew to approve public hearing for Hidden Hills 2, Lots 28 and 29R. Any other discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. 


Item 1.6, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action for the court to set a public hearing for 9:00 a.m. on July 8th, 2019 for a revision of plat for Silver Hills, Lot 4. Charlie Hastings?

Charlie Hastings:
Thank you. This proposed revision of plat divides Lot 4 into two lots, Lot 4A, that will be 15.11 acres, and Lot 4B will be 12.0 acres. Access to both lots will be from Silver Hills Road. They will have their own private water wells, their own septic systems. They’re not in the floodplain. There are no proposed roads. They’re asking for a public hearing. 

The County Engineer requests the court set a public hearing for 9:00 a.m. on July 8th, 2019, for a revision of plat for Silver Hills Lot 4, Volume 3, page 43, Precinct 2. 
Commissioner Moser:
Move for approval. 

Commissioner Belew:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
It’s been moved by Commissioner Moser, seconded by Commissioner Belew to approve the public hearing for Silver Hills, Lot 4. Any other discussion?

Commissioner Letz:
I have a question. Charlie, is there any reason for the odd configuration of that lot with the neck that sticks out to nowhere? 

Commissioner Moser:
Probably access? No it wouldn’t be access. 

Commissioner Letz:
No. Access is off the other road. It doesn’t go to –

Charlie Hastings:
You’re talking about in the very back?

Commissioner Letz:
Yeah, that point. 

Charlie Hastings:
All the way it goes to the back. I haven’t talked to Eric Ashley to find out exactly why his client wanted it to be like this, but I can.

Commissioner Letz:
It just seems an odd way to configure it. 

Charlie Hastings:
It is odd. There’s got to be a good reason. I don’t know what it is. 

Commissioner Moser:
I know why. They want it to look like Oklahoma. 

Judge Kelly:
So, that’s the Livermore look? 

Charlie Hastings:
My guess is that they’re selling Lot 4B and they don’t want 4B to have a fence line that blocks the 4. 

Commissioner Letz:
If you can just –

Commissioner Moser:
But on the other hand, there isn’t anything we can do about it. 

Commissioner Letz:
No.

Commissioner Moser:
They want it that way for whatever reason. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. Any further discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand? 5-0, unanimous. Let’s skip down to 1.8, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action on designating dog park with additional signage and markings. Commissioner Moser? 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. Jody, did we put in here the backup to what that signage looks like? Anyway, if we didn’t, we’ve got a copy of it. I didn’t have it in my packet. But it’s been identified as some potential conflicts between people using the dog park for fishing and picnicking and some issues between dogs eating fish bait and eating fishhooks and things like that. 
So, it was proposed that or was recommended that we consider that we not allow fishing and picnicking in the dog park area along the river. I’m not for that, personally, because there’s too much river there that people fish a lot. I haven’t seen any indications of issues, but there probably have been, it’s been reported. 
So, the proposal is to let people know that that’s a dog park area and to put up three signs – I talked to Shane about this – to say, “Dogs at Play.” So, people, when they realize that their dog is running free in there, they are gonna have to be compatible with that environment of dogs running free. 
So, the proposal – Karen is here – and Karen and I have spoken about this, Karen Guerriero – so, Karen came up with the designs. I think they’re great designs, like two-foot by three-foot signs that we’d put at the entrance of the dog park and it simply would say, “Dogs at Play,” show an image of a dog, and Kerr County Dog Park. 
So, with that, I would make a motion that we allow Shane – it’s a low-cost item. He’s got it in the budget to put these signs up to just delineate that that – let people know that’s a dog free run area. 
Commissioner Belew:
Who’s gonna make them?

Commissioner Moser:
Road & Bridge makes them. Karen, anything else you want to say on that? 

Karen Guerriero:
I appreciate you discussing this and I think that’s a great idea – Karen Guerriero – I think it’s a great – there’s signage there now indicating it is a dog park. But as you all know, signs have a lot of information on them no one reads. It’s a [inaudible] [00:22:28] to our community and tourists that aren’t familiar with our area – I know Mr. Moser, this is the dog park where he –

Commissioner Moser:
All the time. 

Karen Guerriero:
Yes. And there are people that are visiting that aren’t familiar that is even an off-leash dog park that these universal symbols [inaudible]. It probably might [inaudible] just universal images that say dogs at play. I’m not for necessarily keeping people from enjoying the riverbank. It’s just to let them know kind of to share space.

Children also have fishhooks in their feet as well, so, it’s just kind of something we have to deal with when we are controlling the area. Be mindful – be mindful of [inaudible]. That can be a dangerous situation too. I think we talked about trying to get some kind of fencing between the parking lot and the dog area just for safety. 

I think Health and Safety is bit of a little concern there. That’s something that I’d like see. And possibly maybe having the animals that do visit that park it would be great if we can enforce that they have their rabies vaccination just for that interaction with people and children and things like that. 

Commissioner Moser:
So, to break that into bite-sized pieces, right now, it’s the signs. Karen mentioned the possibility – right now, there’s a cable that runs across the area so people don’t drive into the dog park. I’ve talked to Shane and he’s looking at the concepts of putting some fencing to keep the dogs out of the parking area. But we’ll talk about that in – as another agenda item, what that would mean and how to do it. 

My motion right now is to authorize maintenance to put three signs up as delineated in the dog play area, like two-foot by three-foot signs in three different locations across that area. So, that’s my motion.
Commissioner Letz:
Second, but I have some questions. 
Judge Kelly:
Okay. There’s been a motion made by Commissioner Moser, seconded by Commissioner Letz. Open for discussion. 

Commissioner Letz:
Are these, the pictures, are these standard? Road & Bridge, they make their signs off of a template that are nationally recognized symbols. I don’t think they can make these. 

Commissioner Moser:
I don’t know if they can or not. 

Commissioner Letz:
I’m pretty sure they can’t. 

Commissioner Moser:
Okay. 

Karen Guerriero:
Well, the signs [inaudible] [00:25:04] – the signs that are there right now that you’ve got all over, are those standard? If you visit [inaudible] dog parks, you see a lot of variation of the signs [inaudible] the standard signs. 

But I just would like to point that out. There are a lot of people who post signs [inaudible]. And I understand – they can maybe work with a designer. [Inaudible] design that’s completely simple, is a vector image that can be implemented into any computer software or graphics. 
Commissioner Moser:
Let me modify the motion. 
Karen Guerriero:
I can work with them on it. 

Commissioner Moser:
Let me modify the motion to say authorize maintenance to develop, create three signs, essentially two-foot by three-foot that designate it as a dog park not to exceed $300.00 total. 

Commissioner Letz:
That amendment is fine. 

Commissioner Moser:
Okay.

Commissioner Letz:
Is the intent to put them on one spot or to have them –

Commissioner Moser:
No, three – to the north end, the central area, and then down by the river. So, the people going – the cable for the dog park area doesn’t go all the way down to the river. That’s where people go into picnic and to fish. It would just be as a designation to let them know that there are dogs running free in that area. 

Commissioner Harris:
One sign in three different locations. 

Commissioner Moser:
One sign in three locations, correct. 

Commissioner Letz:
I’d recommend that either you or maintenance or somebody go down and figure out where these signs need to go. 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. We’ll talk to Shane. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. Any other discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand? Sure. 

Hoot Gibson:
I came here to talk about the dog park. I got 13 calls this morning. Of course, the dogs got together and they wanted to file a lawsuit about dog discrimination, but that’s [inaudible] [00:27:13]. We’re talking about the off the leash park and as of right now, what you’re getting ready to do is just more signs. Okay. You’re gonna restrict the dogs from the area? 

Commissioner Moser:
No, the dogs – it’s probably 15 acres or something like that that the dogs run in. 

Hoot Gibson:
I go out there every single day. I’ve been doing this for six years. 

Commissioner Moser:
Okay. There’s no restriction on dogs. 

Hoot Gibson:
I know. But I mean, the sign – are you gonna put signs that there’s an off the leash park? 

Commissioner Moser:
Essentially, yes. 

Commissioner Letz:
It’s not changing anything. It’s just putting some signage up. One sign says, “Dogs at Play.” One says, “Dog Swim Area.” The other one says, “Off-Leash Dog Area.” 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. But I think we’re gonna do the, “Dogs at Play.” 

Commissioner Letz:
We’re only gonna do one of them? 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. We’re gonna do one at three locations. 

Commissioner Belew:
This is informational. It’s just informational. Somebody might go to fish and bring their dog. It doesn’t matter. 

Hoot Gibson:
Well, my question – the flood park, it’s always – so far, we have always understood that the flood park was an on the leash park. 
Commissioner Moser:
Correct.

Commissioner Letz:
Correct. 

Hoot Gibson:
That park is an off the leash park. 

Commissioner Moser:
Correct. 

Hoot Gibson:
You have one way to get into the dog park -  a one-lane bridge.

Commissioner Moser:
Correct.

Hoot Gibson:
If you put a sign up on the one-lane bridge, off the leash park, doesn’t that cover the whole thing?

Commissioner Moser:
It does. That’s a –

Hoot Gibson:
Don’t get me wrong. I know the City and County and the State loves to put signs up. I mean, I’m just –

Commissioner Moser:
I don’t love to put signs up. 

Hoot Gibson:
Well, somebody does because they’re everywhere. But if you have to go across that bridge to get there, you only need one sign. 

Commissioner Moser:
That’s a good point. 

Hoot Gibson:
I’m not trying to restrict you. I’m just trying to make it simple. 

Commissioner Moser:
That’s a very good suggestion. 

Hoot Gibson:
But anyway, as long as we’re only gonna do the signs and not the fences or the [inaudible] to be someplace else, dogs are gonna run. 

Commissioner Moser:
This is signs only. What’s your name, sir?

Hoot Gibson:
My name? My name is Hoot Gibson. 

Commissioner Moser:
Hoot Gibson. Okay. 

Hoot Gibson:
I’ve been here 78 years and I have never been before this court and I hope I don’t ever have to do it again. 

Commissioner Moser:
I know an astronaut named Hoot Gibson. I didn’t know he was a fisherman. 

Hoot Gibson:
Well, there are a few of us around here. Great talking to you. 

Commissioner Moser:
Thank you. 

Commissioner Letz:
Thank you. 

Commissioner Moser:
Appreciate your – that’s a very good suggestion, by the way. 

Commissioner Harris:
It is. 

Commissioner Moser:
Excellent. 

Commissioner Letz:
We could just do that. 

Commissioner Moser:
Absolutely. 

Commissioner Belew:
And whoever is driving across the one-lane bridge he’s talking about, it alerts you to the fact that there could be a dog out in front of you. That’s the right place to put it. 

Commissioner Moser:
It’s a great idea. 

Commissioner Letz:
You want to try with one sign?

Commissioner Moser:
Well, we’ll look at the signage. 

Commissioner Letz:
Well your motion is for three. 

Commissioner Moser:
Not to exceed three. How is that? 
Judge Kelly:
Do you accept the amendment? 
Commissioner Letz:
Yes. I accept that amendment. 

Judge Kelly:
Let’s finalize the vote. Those in favor, raise your hand. 5-0, unanimous. 

Commissioner Moser:
The dogs appreciate you. 

Judge Kelly:
Now, I did notice there were, as a matter of record here, there were some paw notes – not footnotes, but paw notes. They haven’t made the signs yet, right? 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. Okay. 

Judge Kelly:
Next item on the agenda is 1.9, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action to declare five chairs as surplus. Sarah Smith? 

James Robles:
Sarah’s not here. I’ll speak on this, if that’s all right. 

Judge Kelly:
Sure. 

James Robles:
These are five various types of chairs that are upstairs. They’re not in working order and maintenance would like to declare them surplus. 

Commissioner Letz:
I move approval of the agenda item. 

Commissioner Belew:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
It’s been moved by Commissioner Letz, seconded by Commissioner Belew to approve declaring these five chairs as surplus. Is there any discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand – 5-0, unanimous. 


1.10, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action to purchase two sets of playground equipment, one set for Lions Park and one set for Flat Rock Park. Commissioner Moser? 

Commissioner Moser:
Thank you, Judge. We received a proposal from Playgrounds Etc., located in Boerne, where their sales office is, for two identical sets of playground equipment that has shades and swings. They gave us a very, very significant discount on this equipment, probably about $20,000.00 or $30,000.00 discount. 

The total price for the equipment, including three days of supervision for installation is – what - $46,000.00. I don’t have the exact amount here – sorry about that. This is first-class equipment, guaranteed for 10+ years, longer than that. I forget exactly what it is. 

But I would like to – I make a motion that we accept the proposal for the playground equipment, as we discussed in earlier Commissioners’ Court, have the County Attorney review that, which she’s not had an opportunity to do yet, contingent on her approval to move forward with that. 

The idea is to have the community in Center Point erect the equipment with the supervision of maintenance. They will provide us a list of all the equipment that’s required to do this. They’ll provide three days of supervision and oversight from their people that do this all the time. Otherwise, it’s like about $10,000.00 to do this. 

We think this is a good way to do it. We have to work out the schedule with Shane and with Road & Bridge on how to do it and when to do and to find a location for Flat Rock Park. The other thing is the colors of the equipment will be Center Point school colors, the ones in Center Point, and Tivy school colors for the equipment in Flat Rock Park. 
Commissioner Letz:
The only question I have, Commissioner – this is going back to more of an ongoing problem on volunteers and insurance and liability –
Commissioner Moser:
Good point. Remind me of what – we had that discussion – I don’t remember the details, but that’s a good point. 

Commissioner Letz:
Jennifer and I have talked about it some and I really have not – but need to talk to County Attorney more about it and TAC more about it. We’re in an area we’re getting volunteers – it’s coming up more and more because of the Animal Control facility and volunteers helping out there, as to how it works when someone hurts their back lifting playground equipment. 

I don’t have a definitive answer, but I’m concerned about our liability when we have volunteers doing work at the County. 
Commissioner Belew:
We can’t have them sign a release? 
Commissioner Letz:
You could, but I’m just concerned about that. I think we need to protect –

Commissioner Moser:
Let me make this an information item and put this on the agenda for next court. 

Commissioner Letz:
Okay. I’ll find out. 

Commissioner Moser:
So, Heather’s had a chance to look at the proposal and we can get the answer. That’s a good point about the insurance. Because trying to save that amount of money and for them to provide the supervision is a good thing to do, plus it gets the community involved, but the insurance is a big issue. So, I’m gonna present that for information today and then we’ll put it on the agenda for next time. 

Commissioner Letz:
Thank you. 

Commissioner Belew:
Let me clarify – we’re not just talking about – we’re not talking about insurance. We’re talking about them signing a release that they’re gonna work on the project. 

Commissioner Moser:
Whatever Jonathan finds out. 

Commissioner Belew:
What’s gonna be the scope of what you’re looking at?

Commissioner Letz:
We’re looking at a lot of volunteers for a lot of different areas. It’s becoming a bigger and bigger question. I’m gonna talk with Jennifer and visit with TAC and say how are we covered – and visit with the County Attorney as well – on volunteers doing work. It’s one thing if they’re doing things like – at the courthouse at Christmas and some of that stuff, where there’s a license agreement on that, we’re protected on that. Little League, they have their own insurance. 
But we have some of these others where we have volunteers that are erecting county playground equipment. That’s a little bit of a different concern. I just want to make sure we’re not liable for someone having some claim for an injury. 
Commissioner Moser:
We’ve even talked about having community in some of the lift stations, which are big concrete boxes in Center Point, even have the high school kids paint them, murals and things like that. So, it would fall under the same thing. Good point. 

Commissioner Harris:
Got to be careful. 

Judge Kelly:
I think it’s prudent that we look into these liability issues before we make the decision. 

Commissioner Moser:
That’s what I’m saying…we’ll bring it back. 
Judge Kelly:
I appreciate the information. 

Commissioner Moser:
It’s information that will come back with the insurance and the proposal that the County Attorney has had a chance to look at. 

Judge Kelly:
Next item on the agenda is 1.11, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding the Kerrville/Kerr County Joint Airport Board budget. For those of you that have not worked with Mary Rohrer before, put on your seatbelts. 
Commissioner Moser:
Prepare for a smooth landing. 

Mary Rohrer:
Good morning, Judge Kelly, Commissioners. I’m Mary Rohrer. I’m the Airport Manager at Kerrville Airport. I believe you have received a copy of our budget as part of the staff report. As Ed had alluded to earlier, our budget this year, our revenues, and our expenditures are revenue neutral. 

So, page three of our revenues shows what our revenues will be and page five shows what our expenses would be and both of those are balanced and are neutral budget incentives. 
Commissioner Letz:
Any changes from prior years?
Mary Rohrer:
Just generally around different places where we’ve had to make some adjustments with respect to benefits and salaries and things like that and then also added some initiatives in there and some more funding to address a more strategic planning initiative that we’ve been working. Many of you have been part of our strategic planning process. 
Commissioner Moser:
I looked at it and I move for approval of the Airport Board budget as presented. 

Commissioner Letz:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
Commissioner Moser has moved and Commissioner Letz has seconded that we approve the Airport Board budget. Is there any discussion about that? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. 

Commissioner Moser:
I want to add one other thing, if I may. We recognized Ed Livermore today is leaving as President of the Board and Bill Wood is in the audience. Bill has been elected by the Board to serve as the President and Dr. Mark Moser is Vice President, as I recall. Thank you, Bill, for all you do. 

Bill Wood:
If I can make a comment that it’s your airport. We’re just helping to run it for you. So, come out and see us. 

Commissioner Letz:
One comment I’ll just make – Bill told me the other day he thought he was retired, but he was wrong. 

Mary Rohrer:
Thank you very much. 
Commissioner Moser:
Thank you, Mary. 

Commissioner Letz:
Did we vote?

Judge Kelly:
We voted. 1.12, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action to approve lease agreement with Xerox for the Environmental Health Department. Ashli Badders?

Ashli Badders:
Good morning. Yes, I would just like the court, if they could, approve our new lease agreement with Xerox. We’ve been using Xerox for as long as I’ve been around. They are upgrading our machines and the cost savings is going to be about $300.00 annually. So, it’s actually going to be lower than what we’re paying. 
Commissioner Letz:
I’ll make a motion that we approve a new lease agreement with Xerox as presented. 

Commissioner Belew:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
It’s been moved by Commissioner Letz, seconded by Commissioner Belew to approve the Xerox lease with the Environmental Health Department. Is there any other discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. 5-0, unanimous. 


1.13, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding IT staff. Commissioner Moser?

Commissioner Moser:
Thank you, Judge. Mr.Motheral is here. With a reduction in the number of people in IT, their plate is more than overloaded. They need additional help in looking at bringing on an intern from Schreiner University. If they do that, it would be within the budget. Do you want to talk – why don’t you come up to the podium? 
Bruce Motheral:
I have approached the Director at Schreiner College that we have used before for interns and part-time help. They have sent me a list of two people so far that we can interview and see if they’ll fit, what we need – help us out. 

Commissioner Moser:
We were just talking about your workload. 

Bruce Motheral:
Consistent - and heavy. 

Commissioner Moser:
Okay. I think when there were four people there, they were burning candles at both ends. 
Bruce Motheral:
Yes sir.

Commissioner Moser:
Now, with three people, they’re ringing 911 saying, “We need help.” So, this is a way to do it. So, when they get the specific information, I think the thing to do is come back to the court and get approval for that. 

But this will make people aware that we’ve got an issue and everybody’s gonna have to be a little bit patient until we get some of this additional help in place. 

Commissioner Belew:
If it’s in the budget, do we need to approve it. Can’t he just? We had this discussion a while back. 

Commissioner Letz:
An intern position is a little bit different than part-time. I think we probably would in this instance. My question is what do you plan the intern to do?

Commissioner Harris:
That was my question. 

Bruce Motheral:
Hardware, software, not Odyssey, nothing that’s going to get the Sheriff up in arms. 

Commissioner Moser:
All IT stuff. 

Bruce Motheral:
It’s just very basic IT stuff. 

Commissioner Letz:
Okay.

Commissioner Belew:
Not network. 

Bruce Motheral:
No. 

Commissioner Moser:
Yeah. I think [inaudible] [00:43:05] once he gets it, it would be good to come back. 

Commissioner Letz:
And I would recommend to have background checks run on them. 

Bruce Motheral:
Oh, absolutely. That’s part of the – all I’m looking for is some permission to go ahead and start looking for these guys. 

Commissioner Moser:
You could do that without –

Commissioner Letz:
I don’t think we need – we don’t need a court order to –

Commissioner Moser:
Thank you. Thank you for what you guys are doing. 

Judge Kelly:
For the record, Bruce, we don’t have a court reporter today. So, I want to identify Bruce Motheral, as our Interim IT Director, that was just speaking. Thank you. 


1.14, Consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding interlocal cooperation agreement between Kerr County and Reeves County for jail services. Sheriff Hierholzer? 
Sheriff Hierholzer:
This is just another housing agreement. Reeves County contacted us a while back. They’re out of space in their facility. They want  to contract with us so that we could house some of their overflow if they needed it. [Inaudible] [00:44:03]. It’s our standard contract form that’s already been approved by the County Attorney’s Office, to be approved by this Court. Reeves County has already executed it and it’s just [inaudible]. 

Commissioner Letz:
I’ll make a motion that we approve the interlocal cooperation agreement between Kerr County and Reeves County for jail services. 

Commissioner Harris:
Second. 

Sheriff Hierholzer:
And we’ll also probably be bringing you one next court with Nueces County.  
Judge Kelly:
A motion has been made by Commissioner Letz, seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the interlocal cooperation agreement between Kerr County and Reeves County for jail services. Any further discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. 


1.15, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding the request from Kerr County Emergency Services District No. 1 for extension to submit audit of the financial records for the fiscal year 2017-2018. 

Commissioner Harris:
Yes. ESD No. 1 has turned in paperwork requesting an extension on their financial audit. Everything looks in order. I make a motion to approve their request. 

Commissioner Belew:
What was the reason? 

Commissioner Harris:
Well, a lot of it’s from our Auditor - being shorthanded. In the past – and we’re gonna hear some more from ESD No. 2 here shortly – in the past, our auditor did this for them. And they had to go out and use outside resources to do this. 

Judge Kelly:
To clear it up on the record, our previous auditor was a CPA. She would help them help our ESDs with their audit requirements. When we lost her, we lost a CPA in the office, plus we’re shorthanded. So, it put both of the ESDs in a bind, which we apologize for because we had been providing that service, but we couldn’t this year. So, that’s why they – and ESD No. 2 did theirs. 

Commissioner Harris:
Yes.

Judge Kelly:
And ESD No. 1 is just asking for an extension so they can get it done. 

Commissioner Letz:
I second the motion. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. So, Commissioner Harris has moved and Commissioner Letz has seconded that we approve the request for the extension for ESD No. 1. Any discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. We’re gonna skip –

Commissioner Belew:
Want to do 1.17? Same thing. 

Judge Kelly:
Yes. Let’s skip over 1.16, which is an executive session item. We’ll go on the addendum to the agenda, item 1.17, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action to accept the Kerr County Emergency Services District No. 2 Compilation Report, September 30th, 2018. Mr. Edwards? Let the record reflect this is Ken Edwards. Please state your position. 

Ken Edwards:
I’m currently the Vice President of Kerr County Emergency Services District No. 2. I appreciate ya’ll giving ESD No. 1 an extension. I was before ya’ll when it wasn’t an agenda item asking that we might get an extension so that we can get this done. I have to give No. 1 credit, they found the auditor, the CPA we used. We were jumping through hoops to try to get this to ya’ll for this morning. Thank ya’ll. Hopefully, you’ll find everything in order. Any questions, I’ll be glad to try to answer them. 
Judge Kelly:
Thank you. 
Ken Edwards:
Thank ya’ll. 

Commissioner Harris:
All right. I move that we accept ESD No. 2 compilation report dated September 30th, 2018. 

Commissioner Belew:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
It’s been moved by Commissioner Harris and seconded by Commissioner Belew to approve the compilation report for ESD No. 2. Any discussion? 

Commissioner Letz:
Is the term compilation report, is that the same as audit? I mean – I’ve just never - 
Commissioner Harris:
No. It’s a simpler form, less expensive. 

Commissioner Letz:
But it’s acceptable? 

Commissioner Harris:
Yes. 

Commissioner Letz:
Under our agreements? Okay.

Judge Kelly:
So, that everybody understands the difference between an audit and a compilation. An audit, the auditors come in and they independently test and verify the numbers that go into the financial information, financial statement. 

The compilation, the accountant or whoever is doing the compilation relies on the information provided to them by the client – in this case, ESD No. 2. It’s much easier. It’s much quicker. It’s much cheaper. We’re dealing with public entities that we feel comfortable that this is reliable information. 

That’s why I would support approving the compilation agreement. Any further discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. 

Commissioner Letz:
Thank you. 

Judge Kelly:
Thank you. Next item is 1.18, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding the job duties for the IT Manager. This is a carryover from one of our recent discussions. As we posted this job as a position. We need to make sure we have an updated job description. So, I just put it on the agenda for us to be able to discuss that and put that process in motion. 

Commissioner Letz:
I think this really – maybe we want to come back to this after 1.19. 

Commissioner Belew:
Yeah, I think so. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. I’m fine with that. Let’s go to 1.19, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding an update on IT security assessment. 

Commissioner Belew:
We have Nathan Rizzo here with us. Come on up, Nathan. Nathan has been contacted by us. He’s with Rx Technologies. He’s been going through what we have, what we don’t have. I asked him to come today and give us an assessment. 
Commissioner Letz:
Do we want to do this in closed session or open?

Commissioner Belew:
I don’t know that there’s any security risk at this point. 

Nathan Rizzo:
It may not be substantial. 

Judge Kelly:
Those are some comforting words. 

Heather Stebbins:
We should go into executive session. If there is going to be anything that would –

Commissioner Belew:
If we touch on that, then – then we can go into the next one also. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. In that case, let me go ahead and make sure that we call 1.16, which is consider, discuss, and take appropriate action on personnel matters that relate to benefit. This will be the items that will be discussed in executive session. So, with that –

Commissioner Moser:
Can we do all the other stuff? 

Judge Kelly:
Yeah. We can pay the bills. No bills? No budget amendments? No late bills? No monthly – oh, we’ve got monthly reports. 

Heather Stebbins:
We’ve got one. 

Judge Kelly:
One?

Jackie Dowdy:
The Treasurers report from April 2019. 

Judge Kelly:
I saw that one, passed it around. 

Commissioner Letz:
I make a motion we approve the monthly reports as presented. 

Commissioner Belew:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. It’s been moved by Commissioner Letz, seconded by Commissioner Belew to approve the monthly reports as presented. Any further discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. Okay. Do we have any court orders? 

Commissioner Letz:
Yes, we do, court order from our May 23rd meeting. I make a motion that we approve the three court orders from our May 23rd meeting, as presented. 

Commissioner Harris:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
It’s been moved by Commissioner Letz, seconded by Commissioner Harris to approve the court orders as presented. Any discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. 5-0, unanimous. 

Commissioner Belew:
Could we have on the record what they are about for these minutes? 

Commissioner Letz:
The first one is to approve the Kerr County claims and accounts be paid as presented – which is paying the bills. Next one is to approve seven budget amendments that were presented. The last one was to approve the court orders at our last meeting. 

Commissioner Belew:
Just so that’s in the minutes. 
Judge Kelly:
It’s in the minutes. Okay. Those in favor, raise your hand. Unanimous, 5-0. Reports from department heads. Any department heads want to make a report? Sheriff? 

Sheriff Hierholzer:
Just real quick – referring to that Reeves County –

Judge Kelly:
Other than I’m technically correct that you are an elected official and not a department head. 

Sheriff Hierholzer:
Either way. But we are currently housing 40 inmates from other counties coming in from about 2,000 a day. Reeves County may be sending some. Nueces County which is in Corpus might be sending some [inaudible] [00:53:27]. On a sad note, Sheriff Gary Painter of Midland County died this weekend suddenly, a very good friend. [Inaudible]. 

Commissioner Moser:
Sheriff, any issues with out-of-county guests that you have out there as far as –

Sheriff Hierholzer:
No. The contract covers it real well. We have some medical things at times, but those counties are paying for all those medical issues. We’re getting some that we have disciplinary issues with, but there’s policy in place and we handle it.

Commissioner Moser:
Okay. Good deal. Keep the lights on. 

Sheriff Hierholzer:
We’re trying. 

Judge Kelly:
Any other elected offices or department heads having reports? Liaison Commissioner reports? 

Commissioner Moser:
The only thing that I would mention is the Airport Board will have a draft of their strategic plan to us very shortly for us to take a look at before they bring it forward for adoption. I think a lot of us have been in some of these strategic planning sessions they work extremely hard and have been diligent and efficient in preparing that. The other thing is Marty, veteran service officer will come forward with the job description for the part-time person that we discussed earlier. So, that’s all I have. 

Judge Kelly:
Anything else? One thing that I would mention is I’ve talked to Charlie Hastings and Kelly Hoffer about the possibility of rearranging the order that we hear their agenda items. If you look around the room, we have a lot of people that have stayed here a long time as we went through some pretty ministerial things that we do on a routine basis. 

One of the discussions I’ve had is whether we can take Charlie and all his people at 10:00. When we have a break right before that, we give everybody time. I throw that out as a possibility and seek your input. 
Commissioner Moser:
Good idea. 
Commissioner Harris:
Makes sense. 

Judge Kelly:
That way we can get to the things that the public is concerned about earlier. 

Commissioner Letz:
Either way, the reason it was done that way before was because they have crews and things to get to so they can get out earlier, but if they’re fine with it, certainly I have no issue with it at all. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. With that, I think we’ll adjourn into executive session unless anybody has anything else for…

Commissioner Belew:
Can we take a little break before?

Judge Kelly:
We’ll take a five-minute break. 

Commissioner Harris:
I wasn’t gonna ask because I knew you would. 

[End of Audio]

Duration: 57 minutes
Judge Kelly:
Okay. It is 10:50. We’re back in open session to finish up on item 1.18, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action regarding the duties for the IT Manager, which involves really updating the job description. 

We’re looking for input from Bruce and his department, maybe even Nathan. We are talking about probably having some sort of outside auditor that oversees on an annual basis, comes in and gives us a report like Nathan’s done. We find that to be very helpful. 

So, in order to be able to post the position, we need to get that updated as soon as possible. We’re looking for you to work with Nathan and kind of give us your updated version of that so we can make sure we’re all covered. 

Bruce Motheral:
Will do. 

Commissioner Belew:
I want to suggest, Bruce, that you take the current position we have, that Jennifer has, look at it, scratch through anything thing that’s obsolete, add what you think we need, and use that. That will save you a lot of time. Just start there. 

Bruce Motheral:
Alright.

Judge Kelly:
Okay. Next item that we have to address in open session is item 1.16, consider, discuss, and take appropriate action on a personnel matter as it relates to benefits. 

Commissioner Letz:
I’ll make a motion on that one – that effective July 17th, 2015, Jane Trolinger should have been eligible for TCDRS retirement system of the County. 

Commissioner Belew:
She was eligible. 

Judge Kelly:
The motion is that she was eligible. 

Commissioner Letz:
She was eligible. 

Commissioner Harris:
Second. 

Judge Kelly:
Okay. We’ve got a motion by Commissioner Letz, seconded by Commissioner Harris that Jane Trolinger was eligible for retirement benefits as of July 2015. Any further discussion? 

Commissioner Letz:
I’ll make a clarification of that as the date she became a regular part-time employee. 

Judge Kelly:
Correct. 

Commissioner Harris:
Rather than a floater. 

Judge Kelly:
Rather than a temporary floater. Any other discussion? Those in favor, raise your hand. 5-0, unanimous. I believe that’s all we have coming out of Executive Session. So, court will be adjourned. 
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